
CITY OF RICHARDSON 
CITY PLAN COMMISSION MINUTES – FEBRUARY 6, 2024 

The Richardson City Plan Commission met on February 6, 2024, at 7:00 p.m. in the Multipurpose 
Room #CH157 of the Richardson City Hall, 2360 Campbell Creek Boulevard, Suite 525, 
Richardson, TX. 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Bryan Marsh, Chairman 
Kenneth Southard, Vice Chairman 
Nate Roberts, Commissioner 
Joe Costantino, Commissioner  
Michael Keller, Commissioner 
Gary Beach, Commissioner 
Sebrena Bohnsack, Commissioner 

MEMBERS ABSENT: Byron Purdy, Commissioner 
Gwen Walraven, Commissioner 

CITY STAFF PRESENT: Sam Chavez, Director of Development Services 
Derica Peters, Senior Planner 
Anna Jo Castaneda, Executive Secretary 

BRIEFING SESSION 
Prior to the start of the regular business meeting, the City Plan Commission met with staff 
regarding staff reports and agenda items. No action was taken. 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1. Approval of Minutes of the regular business meeting of January 16, 2024.

Motion: Commissioner Costantino made a motion to approve the minutes as presented. 
Seconded by Commissioner Southard. Motion passed 7-0. 

PUBLIC HEARING 

2. PUBLIC HEARING
Zoning File 23-16 512 N. Central Expressway – Special Development Plan: Consider and
act on a request for approval of a Special Development Plan for a 0.81-acre lot located at 512
N. Central Expressway, on the east side of Central Expressway, between Davis Street and
Rayflex Drive, currently zoned Main Street/Central Expressway PD Planned Development
(Interurban Sub-District) including an allowance for outdoor storage between the building wall
and Bishop Avenue to accommodate the use of the property for a wholesale establishment.
Owner: David E. Arledge, representing Arledge E K & J II Family Limited PS. Staff: Derica
Peters
APPROVED



2 

Ms. Peters began by stating the subject site is located at 512 N. Central Expressway and is 
approximately 0.81-acres. It was developed in 1974 as a 4,200-square-foot single-story and is 
in the Interurban Sub-district of the Main Street/Central Expressway PD. 

Ms. Peters said the applicant aims to redevelop and make improvements through a Special 
Development Plan which includes approval to allow additional outdoor storage on the site. 
Outdoor Storage is allowed in this sub-district as an accessory use; however, it is only allowed 
behind the building. Bishop Avenue provides street frontage; therefore, the applicant is 
proposing to allow outdoor storage between the building’s east elevation and Bishop Avenue. 

Ms. Peters explained the site has frontage on both Central Expressway and on Bishop Avenue 
so there is no rear yard. The applicant plans to make a few site improvements including 
screening the outdoor storage with an 8-foot-tall tubular steel fence and an 8-foot-tall evergreen 
shrub row along the eastern perimeter of the property.  They will install two (2), new 16-foot-
tall overhead dock doors which will also be screened from Bishop Avenue and adjacent 
properties. The exterior façade upgrade will consist of 84% masonry materials and secondary 
materials to include EIFS, wood siding, canopy awnings and aluminum storefront windows on 
the façade facing Central Expressway frontage. 

Ms. Peters stated the existing two (2) driveways on Central Expressway are proposed to remain 
but are the subject of one (1) item of the Special Development Plan exceptions. The two (2) 
existing driveways on Bishop Avenue will be consolidated into one (1) driveway to 
accommodate unloading of product and customer pick-up. This driveway is proposed at 40’-
wide. Loading traffic will be diverted to the Bishop Avenue entrance which will function as a 
one-way drive aisle from east to west with traffic exiting through the southwest gate and onto 
Central Expressway. 

Ms. Peters reported the elevations provided by the applicant show they will be increasing the 
height of the building from 20-feet-tall to 24-feet-tall which will include a 4-foot parapet. The 
applicant is requesting an exception to the Code requirement that prohibits blank facades.  They 
propose a blank façade along with the 16-foot-tall overhead dock doors on Bishop Avenue.  

Ms. Peters said the applicant shows existing non-conformities on the concept plan that they 
propose to validate on the Special Development Plan. This includes the modified requirement 
for the portion of the building built within the Build-To-Zone on Central Expressway to be a 
minimum of 50% as wide as the property’s width as the existing building is only 49% as wide. 

Ms. Peters stated should the CPC accept the applicant’s request as presented, the motion should 
include the Property shall be developed and used in substantial conformance with the concept 
plan, the elevations, and the evergreen landscape shrub to be 8-foot-tall at time of planting.  

Ms. Peters concluded by stating the City received one piece of correspondence in opposition 
to the request.  

Chairman Marsh asked why the Code does not require any parking. 

APPROVED



3 

Mr. Chavez replied that the Code only requires additional parking if the building is expanded 
or if there is new construction. They are removing perpendicular parking along the north and 
south property lines to accommodate the applicant’s outdoor storage area; however, they intend 
to provide three (3) parking spaces. 

Chairman Marsh asked if they were eliminating parking spaces. 

Mr. Chavez answered yes, they are eliminating twenty-nine (29) parking spaces. 

Commissioner Roberts asked to clarify what BTZ meant as stated in the email opposing the 
request. 

Mr. Chavez answered it means Build-To-Zone, the area where a building would be required to 
be constructed or located in. 

Commissioner Keller asked if staff could give more information on what the plan is for the 
Interurban Sub-District. 

Mr. Chavez stated the Code describes it as an edgy mixed-use district built upon the existing 
bones of the district with a focus on adaptive building reuse and targeted infield development 
that furthers the eclectic style of vision for the Interurban district. 

With no further questions of the staff, Chairman Marsh invited the applicant forward to present 
the request. 

Mr. David E. Arledge, 1508 Travis Circle St., Irving, TX 75038, provided background 
information on his property and described his plan for site improvements. 

Mr. Cletus Pippin, 1293 FM 859, Edgewood, TX stated the reason for combining the two (2) 
driveways into one (1) 40-foot driveway on Bishop Avenue was to provide enough space for 
large trucks to enter the property for and they kept the two (2) existing driveways on Central 
Expressway to allow trucks to exit the property. 

Commissioner Costantino stated the Bishop Avenue façade currently looks like the back of a 
building and needs improvement. 

Chairman Marsh asked to confirm that the Special Development Plan is written and presented 
so that the property must be developed in substantial conformity with the concept plan. 

Ms. Peters confirmed yes, it is typical to include this language in the conditions. 

Mr. Pippin stated the side of the building facing Bishop Avenue is used as a rear since this is 
the loading area. Also, since it is an existing CMU building any additional articulation would 
need to factor into the overall cost, and since they are providing other substantial 
improvements, they are asking for these exceptions in the Special Development Plan. 

APPROVED



4 

Chairman Marsh asked if the applicant would be willing to meet everything that was presented. 

Mr. Pippin stated that is the intent and if there are substantial changes, he understood that 
requires a new hearing.  The existing building would be modified to accommodate the tenant’s 
indoor storage of building supplies. 

Vice-Chairman Southard commented that there is a large section of concrete at the northwest 
corner of the building that could be used for parking. 

Mr. Pippen replied the area was too small to park in and would use it for trucks making turns.  

Vice-Chairman Southard asked how many people would be employed by the tenant. 

Mr. Pippin replied there would be five (5) employees who could park at the business owner’s 
other property located across Bishop Avenue. 

Commissioner Costantino asked if there would be a lock on the gates off Bishop Avenue. 

Mr. Pippin answered the gates would be locked except for during business hours. 

Commissioner Roberts asked if a traffic study was warranted for this request. 

Ms. Peters clarified the Transportation and Mobility Department reviewed the plans and 
determined that at Traffic Impact Analysis was not warranted. 

Commissioner Roberts asked how many trucks are expected to pick-up supplies on-site daily. 

Mr. Pippin answered two (2) to three (3) large trucks and fifteen (15) to twenty (20) contractors 
in smaller trucks. 

Chairman Marsh asked if there were any other questions or final comments. Seeing none, he 
asked if anyone in attendance wanted to come forward in favor or opposition to the request. 

Seeing none, Chairman Marsh made a motion to close the public hearing and Commissioner 
Beach seconded the motion.  Motion passed 7-0. 

Vice-Chairman Southard stated the letter in opposition to the request appeared to primarily 
address the intended use as not being appropriate and its negative consequences. However, 
since the use is permitted, there would not be a remedy for the complaint. 

Commissioner Beach asked if they could provide additional improvements to enhance the 
appearance on Bishop Avenue 

Chairman Marsh stated the iron fence and 8-foot-tall landscaping would be an improvement 
from how it currently looks. 

APPROVED



5 

Commissioner Keller stated the vision of this Sub-district is to support an eclectic mix of uses, 
which is seen in this area on Bishop Avenue, so although the proposed modifications would 
be non-conforming, they would be consistent with the rest of the area. 

Commissioner Beach commented if the City wanted the building to be treated with like 
frontage on both sides, then the proposal should be consistent with the City’s intent for this 
area. 

Commissioner Keller agreed with Commissioner Beach. 

Vice Chairman Southard suggested signage or false windows to give the illusion of a building 
front. 

Mr. Arledge agreed they were willing to add improvements to this side of the building.  

Mr. Pippin elaborated to say they can come up with solutions that will make the back look as 
good as the front of the building, such as dressing the rear doors in wood paneling and adding 
canopies on this façade. 

Vice Chairman Southard asked if Commissioner Beach and Commissioner Keller would 
approve of this idea. 

Commissioner Beach and Commissioner Keller concurred. 

Commissioner Bohnsack asked if a motion could be made to approve the request with 
modifications as discussed at this meeting. 

Mr. Chavez replied yes. 

Mr. Costantino suggested the motion state the request be approved with the condition that the 
Bishop Avenue side of the building mimic the Central Expressway side. 

Mr. Arledge returned to the podium and stated the Central Expressway façade design is based 
on retail and office market and the Bishop Avenue side would be for a different market but 
will be improved and compatible with the surrounding neighbors.  

Chairman Marsh discussed the Commission’s ability to ask the applicant to make the facades 
mimic each other. 

Commissioner Beach suggest they make a motion that the plan be approved as presented with 
the provision that something is done on the Bishop Avenue façade to make it look more like 
the façade facing Central Expressway.   

Mr. Chavez recommended the motion to state approve subject to amending the east elevation 
with similar design characteristics as the west elevation of the building. 

APPROVED



6 

Chairman Marsh confirmed Commissioner Beach motion to say subject request to be approved 
subject to amending the east elevation with similar design characteristics as the west elevation 
of the building. 

Motion: Commissioner Beach made a motion to recommend approval of the request, 
subject to amending the east elevation with similar design characteristics as 
the west elevation of the building. Commissioner Costantino seconded the 
motion. Motion passed 7-0. 

ADJOURN 
With no further business before the Commission, Chairman Marsh adjourned the regular 
business meeting at 8:02 p.m. 

Bryan Marsh, Chairman 

APPROVED




